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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Chairman and Members of
the Board of Commissioners

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency

Jersey City, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of Jersey City Redevelopment Agency
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City) as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of confents. The financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were audited by other auditors whose report dated June 29, 2017 expressed an
unmodified opinion in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant {o the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, the audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey (the “Division”), and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.




Honorable Chairman and Members of
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Jersey City Redevelopment Agency
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Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design aundit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency as of December 31,2017 and 2016, and
the respective changes in {inancial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Prior Period Restatement and Adjustment

The Agency’s financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2017 were previously issued
with amounts not conforming to the most current generally accepted accounting principles. The
Agency has restated certain prior year balances in order to conform to these updated accounting
pronouncements, as discussed in Note 12 of the financial statements. These restatements have
caused a prior period adjustment to unrestricted net assets, which was recognized during 2017. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. '

Application of GASB Statement No. 72

During 2017 the Agency has begun to apply GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and
Application. The application of this pronouncement has caused a material unrealized gain on
revaluation of capital assets as discussed in Note 13 of the financial statements. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion, and Analysis and schedule ofthe Agency's proportionate share of the net
pension liability and schedule of Agency contributions as listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Wehave applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprises the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s financial statements, The
Supplemental Schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial staterents.

The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Inaccordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15,
2018 onour consideration of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance,

Very truly vours,

G 3Q, Gltoc G dA, -

FERRAIOLL, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

August 15, 2018




Management Discussion and Analysis




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency, we offer the Agency’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the Agency’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017. Please read this analysis in cornjunction with the Agency’s financial statements,
which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HEGHLIGHTS

The following data highlights the Agency’s finances for the year ended December 31, 2017:

s The Agency’s total net position increased $34,645,581 or 84%
» Cash and cash equivalents increased $3,352,222 or 15%
s Unrestricted assets increased $2,972,975 or 11%
o Restricted assets decreased $302,447 or (4)%
» Current liabilities decreased $2,092,914 or (9%
o Noncurrent liabilities decreased $1,007,565 or (18)%
» Operating revenues decreased $8,005,605 or (51)%
s Operating expenses decreased $4,827,807 or (45)%
» Operating income decreased $3,177,798 or (64)%




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Agency is a corporate and politic body organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey. The
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in two sections: Financial Statements and Notes,
and Supplemental Schedules and Comments. The Financial section includes Management’s Discussion
and Analysis and Financial Statements with notes that explain in more detail some of the information in
the financial statements. The Supplemental Schedules include detailed financial information along with
general comments and recommendations.

Reguired Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Agency report information about the Agency using accounting methods
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term financial
information about its activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Agency’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature and amounts of
investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to Agency creditors (liabilities). Its also provides
the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Agency and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Agency.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position reports how the Agency’s net
position changed during the current fiscal year. All current revenues and expenses are included
regardless of when cash is received or paid. An important purpose of the design of the statement of
activities is to show the financial reliance of the Agency’s distinet activities or functions on revenues
provided by the Agency’s customers and other funding sources.

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position. This statement measures the results of the Agency’s
operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether the Agency has recovered all its
costs through user fees and other changes, operational stability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash
receipts and cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing
activities and provides answers to such questions as what operational sources provided cash, what was
the cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Notes to the Fingncial Statements

The accompanying notes o the financial statements provide information essential to a full
understanding of the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately
following the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statemenis and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information. This supplementary information follows the notes to the financial
statements.

Financial Analysis of the Agency

One of the most important questions asked about the Agency’s finances is “Is the Agency as a whole
better able to fulfill its mission as a result of this years activities?” The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses and Changes in Fund Net Position report information about the
Agency’s activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report net
position of the Agency and the changes in those assets. The reader can think of the Agency’s net
position - the difference between assets and liabilitics - as one way to measure financial health or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Agency’s net position is one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider the non-
financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, development, and new or
changed government regulation.

Net Position

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in fund net position
may be observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the Agency as a whole.




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Net Position, contimzed
The Agency’s net position at fiscal year-end is $75,843,246. This is a $34,645,581 increase from last

year’s net position of $41,197,665. A summary of the Agency’s statement of net position is presented
in the following table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Percentage

(Restated) Increase/ Increase/

017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Unrestricted Assets 29,545,683 26,572,708 2,972,975 11.19%
Restricted Assets 6,628,544 6,930,991 (302,447) (4.36)%
Capital Assets 65,714,434 35.800.897 29.913.537 83.56%
Total Assets 101,888,661 69.304.596 32,584,065 47.02%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 981912 1.418.213 (436.301) (30.76)%
Current Liabilities 21,520,159 23,613,073 (2,092,914) (8.86)%
Non-current Liabilities 4,702,102 5,709,667 (1,007.565) (17.65)%
Total Liabilities 26,222 261 29,322,740 (3.100.479) (10.57%
Deferred Inflows of Resources __B05.066 202,204 602,862 298.15%

Net Position

Investment in Capital Assets . 65,714,434 35,800,897 29,913,537 83.56%
Unrestricted 10.128 812 5,396,768 4,732,044 87.68%
Total Net Position 75,843,246 41,197.665 34,645,581 84.10%




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Net Position, continued

A summary of the Agency’s prior year statement of net position is presented with comparative FY 2015
balances in the following table.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Percentage
Increase/ Increase/

2016 2015 {Decrease) {Decrease)

Unresiricted Assets 23,329,754 14,950,215 8,379,539 56.05%
Resiricted Assets 9,562,963 16,460,649 (6,857,686) (41.90)%

Capital Assets 35,800,897 32,269,699 3,531,198 10.94%

Total Assets 68,693,614 63,680,563 5,013,051 7.87%

Deferred Qutflows of Resources 1,418,213 232,578 1,185,635 509.78%
Current Liabilities 23,002,091 23,351,782 (349,691 (1.50)%

Non-current Liabilities 5,709,667 4221.122 1,488,545 35.26%

Total Liabilities 28.711,758 27.572.904 1.138.854 4.13%
Deferred Infiows of Resources 202,404 290,798 (88.394) (30.40)%

Net Position

Investment in Capital Assets 35,800,897 32,269,699 3,531,198 10.94%
Restricted 941,492 1,336,630 (395,138) (29.56)%

Unrestricted 4.455.276 2,534,110 1,921,166 75.81%

Total Net Position 41,197.665 36,140,439 5,057,226 13.99%
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Net Position, continued

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of these
changes. As can be seen in the following table, net position increased by $34,645,581.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Fund Net Position

Percentage
(Restated) Increase/ Increase/
2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease) 2015
Operating Revenue:
Federzal and State Grants 2,791,048 $6,493,051 {3,702,003) -57.01% 6,218,456
Other:
City and County Contributions 99,399 1,894,064 (1,794,665) -94.75% 1,810,861
Redeveloper Fees 1,707,807 853,403 854,404 100.12% 742,200
Redeveloper Reimbursements 1,284,536 1,114,112 170,424 15.30% 2,006,156
Miscellaneous 1,034,739 388,347 646,392 166.45% 3,166,517
Gain on Sale of Property 691,795 2,993,237 (2,301,442} -76.89%
Contribution of Property Held for Reimbursement 1,878,715 (1,878.715) -100.00%
Total Operating Revenue 7,609,324 15.614.929 (8.005.605) -51.27% 13,944,190
Operating Expenses:
Grant Retated
Federal, State and Private 580,031 3,705,779 (3,125,748) -84.35% 6,218,456
Nongrant Related
City and County Contributions 99,399 1,894,064 (1,754,665) -94.75% 1,810,861
Redeveloper Reimbursed Expenses 1,713,679 1,114,112 599,567 53.82% 4,703,914
Other 3,i86,816 3,738,580 (551,764) -14.76% 196,722
Depreciation 244 233 199,430 44 803 2247% 112,138
Total Operating Expenses 5,824,158 10,651,965 (4.827.807) -45.32% 13,042,691
Operating Income/{Loss) 1,785,166 4,962,964 (3,177,798} -64.03% 902,099
Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses)
Interest Revenue 161,486 94,262 67,224 71.32% 44,498
Bad Debt Expense (250.000}
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 161,486 94,262 67,224 71.32% (205.502)
Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Fixed Asscts 32,085,341 32,085,341 100.00%
Prior Period Adjustment 613,588 613,588 100.00% 850,000
Changes in Net Position 34,645,581 5,057.226 29.588.355 585.07% 1,546,597

The Agency’s operating revenues decreased by $8,005,605 to $7,609,324 in fiscal year 2017 from
$15,614,929 in 20186, as restated.

1.




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Budgetary Highlights

The State of New Jersey requires local authorities to prepare and adopt annual budgets in accordance with
the Local Authorities Fiscal Conirol Law and regulations adopted by the Local Finance Board pursuant to
this statute and codified as N.J.A.C. 5:31-1 et seq. The statutory budget was designed to demonstrate to the
Bureau of Authority Regulation of the Division of Local Government Services that the cash flows of the
Authority for the coming year will be sufficient to cover operating expenses, interest accruing on bonded
indebtedness and cash payments of maturing bond and loan principal.

The following tables provides a budget comparison:

Budget vs. Actual - 2017

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Operating 11,258,396 6,917,529 (4,340,867
Non-Operating 110,000 161.486 51.486
11,368,396 7,079,015 (4,289,381)
Expenses:
Operating 11,368,396 5.347.897 (6,020.499)
Income 0 1,731,118 1,731,118
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unif of the City of Jersey City)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Capital Assets

The following table summarizes the capital assets as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015:

CAPITAL ASSETS
2017 2016 2015

Invested in Capital Assets:
Buildings 23,047,400 9,676,058 9,676,058
Construetion in Progress 3,003,676
Property Held for Redevelopment 46,144,142 26,354,039 25,692,087
Vehicles and Equipment 80.717 80,718 15.718

69,272,259 39,114,491 35,383,863
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3.557.825) (3.313.594) (3.114.164)

65,714.434 35,800,897 32.269.699

CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the City of Jersey City, New Jersey citizens and taxpayers, and
our customers, clients, investors and creditors, with a general overview of the Agency’s finances and to
demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for the appropriations and grants that it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, you may contact the Agency’s Executive
Director at 66 York Street, Floor 2, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

-13-
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

Exhibit A

Assets 2017 014
(Restated)
Unsestricted Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 20,221,755 16,044,038
Accounts Receivable 172,886 150,161
Intergovernmentel Receivables 2,402,971 2,512,941
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts {250,000) (250,000)
Mortgage Loans Receivable 325,034 528,123
Total Unrestricted Current Assets 23,072,646 18,985,265
Restricted Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivelents 5,494,514 6,320,009
Developers Escrow Recsivable 1,134,030 610,982
Total Restricted Current Assets 6,628,544 6,930,991
Tatal Cuirent Assets 29,701,190 25,916,256
Unrestricted Noncurrent Assets
Mortgage Loan Receivable 4,712,824 4,085,981
Accried Interest - Mortgage Loan Receivable 10,213 1,462
Accounts Receivable - Property Held for Redevelopment 1,750,000 3,500,000
Total Unrestricted Noncurrent Assets 6,473,037 7,587 443
Capital Assets
Buildings (Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $3,528,566 and $3,393,528) 19,518,834 6,380,851
Construction in Progress 3,003,676
Property Held for Redevelopment 46,144,142 26,354,039
Vehicies and Equipment (Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $29,259 ang $19,781) 51,458 62,291
Total Capital Agsets {Net of Accumnulated Depreciation) 65,714,434 35,800,897
Total Noncurrent Assets 72,187,471 43,388 340
Total Assets 101,888,661 69,304,596
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Amounis on Net Pension Liability 581,912 1,418.213
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 981,912 1,418,213
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resourcas 102,870,573 70,722,809

The Naotes to the Financial Statements are en Integral Part of this Staterent.

-14-




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

Liabilities
_ Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets
Accounts Payabk and Other Liabilities
Uneamed Revenue
Redeveloper Contracts Payable
Intergovernnental Payahles
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Developers Escrow ’
Project Deposits
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Lisbilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets
[ater-Agency Loan Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Judgement Payable
Net Pension Liability
Totai Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets
Total Noncurrent Liabililies

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Met Position

Investmient in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.

-15-

Exhibit A

122,218 805,652
6,965,430 5,772,463
115,055 115,055
7488912 9,988,912
14,861,615 16,682,082
3,940,544 4,898,528
2,688,000 2,032,463
6,628,544 6,930,591
21,520,159 23,613,073
317,204 317,204
281,206 350,446
1,450,000 1,450,000
2,633,692 3,583,017
4,702,102 5,709,667
4,702,102 5,700,667
26,222,261 29,322,740
805,066 202,404
803,066 202,404
27,027,327 29,525,144
65,714,434 35,800,897
10,128,812 5,396,768
75,843,246 41,197,665




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2017 AND 2016

Exhibit B

Operating Revenues 2017 olé
(Restated)
Federal Grants:
Department of Housing and Urban Development Ry 1,410,391 b3 4,331,115
Environmental Protection Agency 118,801 1,329,367
State Grants:
Department of Environmental Protecticn 1,261,856 782,469
UEZA Passed Through JCEDC 50,100
Other:
Redeveloper Fees 1,707,807 853,403
Redevelaper Reimbursements 1,284,536 1,114,112
City Confributions 99,399 1,894,064
Miscellaneous 1,034,739 388,347
Gain on Disposition of Property Held for Redevelopment ‘ 691,795 2,993,237
Contribution of Property Held for Redevelopment 1,878,715
Total Operating Revenue 7,609,324 15,614,929
Operating Expenses
Grant Related:
Federal 329,290 2,873,210
State 241,867 832,569
Private 3.874
Nongrant Refated:
City Contsibutions 99,399 1,894,064
Redeveloper Reimbursed Expenses 1,713,679 1,014,112
Other 3,186,816 3,738,580
Depreciation 244 233 199,430
Totat Operating Expenses 5,824,158 10,651,965
Operating Income 1,785,166 4,862,964
Noneperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Revenue 161,486 94,262
Total Nenoperating Revenues (Expenses) 161,486 94,262
Change in Net Position 1,946,652 5,057,226
Net Position, Beginning of Year b 41,197 665 $ 36,140,439
Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Fixed Assets
(Change in Accounting Policy - Note 14) 32,085,341
Prior Period Adjustment
{Change in Accounting Policy - Note 13) : £13,588
Net Position, End of Year § 75,843 246 $ 41,197,665

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement,
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Exhibit C

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOFMENT AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 017 2016
Operating Cash Receipts b3 7,590,906 5 9,809,048
Operating Cash Payments (7,692,865) (9,486,155)
Receipts of Project Deposits 707,548 1,510,101
Payments from Project Deposits (1,092,425) (1,114,111)
Receipts from the Sale of Property Held for Redevelopment 3,817,766 716,000

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3,330,930 1,428,883

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Receipts for the Disposition of Property on Behatf of the City of Jersey City 17,895,000
Payments to the City of Jersey City for Disposition of Property (10,000,000)
Payments for the Acquisition of Equipment (63,000)
Payments for Consiruction in Progress and Building Improvements (140,194) (3,003,676)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Finaneing Activities (140,19 4,826,324

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Received 151,486 94,262
~ Met Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 161,486 94,262
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . 3,352,222 6,349,469
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year $ 22,364,047 k) 16,014,578
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period $ 25,716,269 3 22,364,047
Analysis of Belance at June 30, 2017
Unrestricted - Cash end Cash Equivalents 20,221,755 16,044,038
Restricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,494,514 6,320,009

§ 25,716,269 b 22,364,047

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

Reconciliation of Qperating Income to Net Cash
Provided {{sed) by Operating Activities

Exhibkit C

Operating Income 5 1,785,166 5 4,962,964
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 244,233 199,430
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (22,724) (95,289}
(Increase)/Decrease it Developers Escrow Receivabic (523,048)
(Increase)/Decrease in Intergovernmental Recetvables 109,970 108,378
(Increase)/Decrease in Mortgage Loans Receivable (623,752 605,989
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable - Property Held for Redevelopment 1,750,000 (3,500,000}
{Increase)/Decrease in Accrued Interest - Morigage L.oans Receivable (8,750) {1,462)
(Increase)/ecrease in Property Held for Redevelopment 3,117,652 (661,952)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (483,434) 660,864
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue 1,192,967 (1,852,462)
Increase/(Decrease) in Redeveloper Contracts Payable - 465
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable (78,240) 19,301
Increase/{Decrease) in Developers Escrow {957,984) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Project Deposits 655,537 395,690
Increase/{Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable (2,500,000) 400,452
Increasef(Decrease) in New Pension Liability (929,325) 1,469,244
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability 602,662 (1,183,029)
Total Adinstments 1,545,764 (3,534,081)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 3,330,930 b 1,428,883

The Notes to the Financial Staiemems are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

Reporting Entity

The Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (the "Agency") is a public body corporate and politic
of the State of New Jersey. The Agency was created by municipal ordinance on August 16,
1949 pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 306 of the New Jersey Sessions Law of 1949,
N.J.S.A. 40:55C-1, for the purpose of carrying out certain urban renewal program activities
for City of Jersey City (the "City"). The Agency is empowered to exercise public and
essential government functions, including acquisition, condemnation, clearance, renovation
and redevelopment of property in designated blighted areas and to carry out redevelopment
plans for the City. )

The Agency is governed by a Board of Commissioners (the "Board”) consisting of seven
members, who are appointed by the Governing Body of the City of Jersey City. The Board
of Commissioners determines policy actions, approves resolutions and selects an executive
director to be responsible for the overall operation of the Agency.

On August 5, 1992, the Legislature of the State of New Jersey adopted the Local
Redevelopment and Housing Law (NJSA 40A:12A-1 et. seq.) which became effective on a
retroactive basis to January 1, 1992, This law requires all redevelopment agencies to be
subject to the provisions of the "Loocal Authorities Fiscal Control Law". As a result of this
change, the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency is subject to the laws, rules and regulations
promulgated for Authorities in the State of New Jersey and must report to the Burcan of
Authority Regulation, Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community
Affairs, State of New Jersey.

In June of 1992 the City of Jersey City created by City Ordinance #92-066, a Division of
Redevelopment. The purpose of said Division was to assume many of the programmatic
duties of the Agency on a day-to-day basis in addition thereto, a Cooperation Agreement was
entered into between the Agency and the City of Jersey City whereby the Redevelopment
Agency transferred a substantial portion of its personnel to this Division of Redevelopment.

The Jersey City Redevelopment Agency includes in its financial statements the primary
government and those component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Agency is
financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Agency is financially
accountable for an organization if the Agency appeints a voting majority of the organization's
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

A,

Reporting Entity, (continued)

board, and (1) the Agency is able to significantly influence, the programs or services
performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the Agency is legally entitled to or can
otherwise access the organization's resources; the Agency is legally obligated or has
otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support
to, the organization, or the Agency is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Agency in that the
Agency approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the Agency has no component units. The Agency would be includable as
a component unit of the City of Jersey City on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation — Financial Statements

The accounts of the Agency are organized and operated on the basis of funds. The agency
maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for its operations. The operations ate accounted for
with a self-balancing set of accounting records that comprise its assets, liabilities, net
position, revenues and expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according fo their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-
related legal and confractual provisions. A description of the Agency's fund type it maintains
to account for its financial transactions is as follows:

Proprietary Fund Types — This fund type accounts for operations that are organized to
be self-supporting and includes Enterprise Funds.

An enterprise fund is used to account for those operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to a private business or where the entity has decided that the periodic
determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is appropriate for
management accountability purposes.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications may have been made to the 2016 amounts to conform with the 2017
financial presentation.

-20-




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

C.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements.

The Agency's financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets, all deferred inflows/outflows, and all
liabilities associated with these operations are included on the Statement of Net Position.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management of the Agency to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
results coutd differ from those estimates. Management currently uses estimates to determine
the fair market value of property held for redevelopment and the useful life of depreciable
assets.

Cash Deposits and Investments

The Agency's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, certificates of
deposit, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments held by the Agency approximate fair value, which is defined as the amouunt at
which a financial instrament could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties. ‘

State statutes authorize the Agency to invest in certain types of investments. These
investment vehicles are summarized in Note 3.
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

F.

Intergovernmental Receivables and Payables

Transactions between the Agency and the City of Jersey City and other City and State of New
Jersey (the "State") agencies that are representative of capital allotment/grant award
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as intergovernmental
receivables.

Amounts owed to the City of Jersey City and other City and State agencies at the end of the
year as a result of contractual arrangements are reported as intergovernmental payables.

Mortgage Loans Receivable

The Agency has issued mortgage loans to secure a portion of the project costs on certain
renovation and rehabilitation projects within the City.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are restricted as the result of certain agreements entered into between the
Agency and third parties.

Capital Assets

Buildings and vehicles and equipment are recorded at cost.

Property held for redevelopment is recorded at acquisition cost ot, if donated or contributed,
are stated at their estimated fair market value on the date of receipt by the Agency. For
properties held for redevelopment where this information is not available, properties are
stated at their assessed value as of December 31, 2017.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the life of an asset are expensed. '

Major outlays for capital assets ate capitalized as projects are constructed or acquired by the

Agency. All other costs to place the assets in the intended location and condition for use are
capitalized in the value of the asset constructed.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

L Capital Assets, (continued)

Buildings and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Year
Buildings 50
Vehicles 5
Equipment 3-6

J. Deferred OQuiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.

The Agency has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred
amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported in
the Agency-wide statement of net position and resuit from: (1) differences between expected
and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and
actua) investment earnings on pension plan investments; (4) changes in proportion and
differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and (5)
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and
amortized over future years.

In addition fo liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Agency
has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred amounts
on net pension liability, Deferred amounts on net pension liability ate reported in the
Agency-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and
actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings on pension plan investments; and (4) changes in proportion and
differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions. These
amounts are deferred and amortized over future years,
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

K.

Project Deposits

Certain monies held by the Agency or third parties on behalf of the Agency in conjunction
with a specific project or purpose are reported as project deposits.

Unearned Revenue

Grant funds and related program income, City capital contributions and redeveloper
reimbursements received, but rot earned at year-end, are reported as deferred revenue.

Compensated Absences

It is the Agency's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick leave,
compensatory time and vacation benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated sick leave,
compensatory time and vacation benefits and salary related payments has been recorded on
the statement of net position, representing the Agency's commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the State of
New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these retirement systems' fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement systems. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Net Position
In the statement of net position, there are three classes of net position:

. Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets less accumulated
depreciation.
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

0.

P.

Net Position, (continued)

«  Restricted net position — reports net position when constraints placed on the
residual amount of noncapital assets are either externally imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

. Unrestricted net position -— any portion of net position not already classified as
either net investment in capital assets or net position — restricted is classified as
net position — unrestricted.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Agency will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order fo calculate the
amounts to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Agency's policy to consider restricted — net position have
been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proptietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of operations and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. The Agency considers
transactions pertaining to property held for redevelopment to be operating revenues and
expenses since these transactions are connected with its principal ongoing operations. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses. ‘

Grants received are recognized as revenue when the resources are expended for the purpose

specified in the grant agreement. Grant funds received and not yet expended are reported as
deferred revenue.
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

R.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement
applies to government employers who provided OPEB plans to their employees and basically
parallels GASB Statement 68 and replaces GASB Statement 45. The Statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2017, The Agency believes this Statement will have
no effect on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issned GASB Statement No. 76, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments,
which reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP from the four
categories under GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments. The first category of authoritative GAAP
consists of GASB Statements of Governmental Accounting Standards. The second category
comprises GASB Technical Bulletins and Implementation Guides, as well as guidance from
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants that is cleared by the GASB. The
Agency believes this Statement will have no effect on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions
Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, which
establishes the criteria for identifying the applicable pension plans and addresses
measurement and recognition for pension liabilities, expense and expenditures; note
disclosures of descriptive information about the plan, benefit terms, and contributions items;
and required supplementary information presenting required contribution amounts for the
past 10 fiscal years. The Agency believes this Statement will have no impact future financial
statements.

In March 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.
82, Pension Issues - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73. The
objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Ave Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses
issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroli-related measures in required supplementary
information, {2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

R.

Recent Accounting Proneuncements, (continued)

guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the
classification of paymenis made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. The Agency does not believe this Statement will have any effect
on future financial statements.

In November 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement
No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement establishes criteria for
determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred
outflows of resources for asset retirement obligations (AROs). The Agency does not believe
this Statement will have any effect on future financial statements.

In January 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.
84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities
of all state and local governments. The focus on the criteria generally is on (1) whether a
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with
whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify component
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The Agency is
currently evaluating the effects, if any, this Statement may have on future financial
statements.

In March 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.,
85, Omnibus 2017, which addresses practice issues that have been identified during the
implementation and application of certain GASB statements. This Statement addresses a
variety of topics including issues relating to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits. The Agency is currently
reviewing what cffect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

In May 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.
86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, which improves consistency in accounting and
financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions
in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources—resources
other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole
purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial
reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial
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NOTE 1.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

R.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, (continued)

statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017, The Agency is currently
reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.
87. Leases, which is intended to increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lessee is required
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, as a lessor is required
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the
relevance and consistency of information about the government’s leasing activities. The
Agency is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future
financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB_Statement No. 88, Ceriain
Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placement. The
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in the information that is disclosed in
notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and
direct placements, and to provide financial statement users with additional essential
information about debt. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2018. The Agency is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might
have on future financial statements.

In June 2018, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 89,
Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The
objectives ofthis Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement
is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Agency is
currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial
statements.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Accounting

The Agency annually prepares an operating budget. The budget is prepared in accordance with the
Budget Manual for Local Public Authoritics as promulgated by the Division of Local Government
Services, which differs in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The budget serves as a plan for expenses and the proposed means for
financing them. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.

The annual budget is required to be approved at least sixty days prior to the beginning of the fiscal
year. The budget must be approved by the Board and submitted to the Division of Local
Government Services, Bureau of Authority regulation for approval prior to adoption. The budget
adoption and amendments are recorded in the Agency's minutes.

A five year capital budget is also required to be prepared. Included within the budget are individual
projects along with their estimated cost, completion date and source of funding.

The encumbrance method of accounting is utilized by the Agency for budgetary purposes. Under
this method purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures of resources are
recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable budget appropriation.

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
outstanding encumbrances at year-end for which goods or services are received, are classified to
expenses and accounts payable. All other encumbrances in the annual budgeted funds are reversed
at year-end and are either cancelled or are included as reappropriations of fund equity for the
subsequent year. Encumbrances at year-end in funds that are budgeted on a project basis
automatically carry forward along with their related appropriations and are not subject to annual
cancellations and reappropriations.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Agency considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and certificates of deposit as cash
and cash equivalents.

Depaosits
The Agency's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposil Insurance Corporation

(FDIC), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Agency is required to deposit their funds in a depository
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NOTE 3.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (continued)

which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral
equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount
of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits
not covered by FDIC.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. SIPC
replaces cash claims up to a maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the book value of the Agency's deposits were $25,716,269 and
$22,364,047, respectively, and bank balances of the Agency's cash and deposits amounted to
$25,836,335 and $22,648,317, respectively. The Agency's deposits which are displayed on the
statement of net position as "cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Book Balance
Depository Account (Restated)
017 2016
Restricted $5,494,514 $6,320,009
Unrastricted 20,221,755 16,044,038

$25.716,269 $22.364,047

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Agency does not have a formal
policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency's bank balances
of $7.838,270 and $7,772,238, respectively, were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Agency is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized
by N.J.S.A. 40A:5 15.1. Tnvestments include bonds or other obligations of the United States or
obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds,
bonds or other obligations of the Agency or bonds or other obligations of the school districts which
are a part of the Agency or school districts located within the Agency, Local Government
investment pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted
in accordance with NJSA 40A:5-15.1 (8a-8e).

As of December 31, 2017, the Agency had no outstanding invesiments.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 4. MORTGAGE LOANS RECEIVABLE

The mortgage loan receivable balances at December 31, 2017 consists of mortgage loans on various
properties in certain redevelopment areas.

Location Description

Ocean/Bayview

Grove Street 2

1 Edward Hart Road

Journal Square

Liberty Harbor

Loan Terms

Issued to New Community Ocean/Bayview Housing Associates,
L..P. on December 28, 1989 as a balloon mortgage for $274,000
at an interest rate of 9% and subsequently rolled over in 1991 at
an interest rate of 1% for a term of 20 years. The term of this
mortgage has been extended to 30 years, maturing on June 10,
2021.

Issued to Majestic U.R. LLC on October 15, 2015 for $183,344,
with an interest rate of 4.25% per annum. The note provides for
monthly payment of principal and interest of $1,135 based on a
twenty year payout. All sums owed on the note are due no later
than November 15, 2025.

Issued to 1 Edward Hart Road LLC in October 2015 for $250,000
with an interest rate of 3.5%. The note requires monthly payments
of interest only up to the earlier of the mortgagee securing
permanent financing or October 2017 at which time a lump sum
payment of the entire unpaid principal balance will be due,

Issued to Kennedy, LLC on June 2, 2003 for $700,000 as a
balloon mortgage payable on June 2, 2033 at interest rates of 1%

for years one through five, 3% for years six through fifteen, and
5% for years fifteen through thirty.

Issued to Liberty Harbor North IT Urban Renewal Company, LLC
on October 29, 2004. The mortgage provides an amount equal to
any excess condemnation award determined by the court related
to the property for which the mortgage is secured. On February 6,
2009, the Superior Court of New Jersey determined the excess
condemnation award to be $17,350,000, plus interest. In July
2012, a settlement was entered into whereby the developer agreed
to pay the Agency the sum of $21,000,000 plus a deferred interest
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 4. MORTGAGE LOANS RECEIVABLE, (continued)

Location Description Loan Terms

payment of §1,450,000. Payments are to be made in accordance
with the agreed upon schedule of payments commencing in 2012
with the final payment to be made on or before June 30, 2018.

« MLK Drive Issued to Jackson Green, LLC on May 29, 2013 for $435,600,
interest free. Payment shall be made by the borrower upon the
sale of each unit for which the mortgage has been issued. The lien
of the mortgage shall be released at closing with respect to each
unity sold by the borrower, whether or not such sale provided
proceeds to be applied to the repayment of the mortgage note.

+ Liberty Manor Issued to 28 Liberty Manor Development, LLC on December 23,
2014 for $678,125. Payments shall be made in thirty one (31)
equal installments as each residential condominium unit is sold.
Interest at a yearly rate of 2% will be charged on that part of the
principal which has not been paid from the issuance date until all
principal has been paid. Final payment shall be due on or before
the maturity date of November 5, 2016. During 2017, the Agency
and the redeveloper agreed to a lump-sum payment of $100,000
on or before Japuary 8, 2018 with the remaining principal and
interest accrued thereon to be paid in full no later than
September 30, 2018.

» Ash Street Issued to Ash Urban Development, LL.C on October 19, 2015 for
$850,000 at a fixed rate of interest of 1.25% per annum. The
borrower shall pay the principal and interest in monthly
installments on the first day of each and every month following
the completion of remediation. All outstanding principal and
interest shall be due and payable fifteen (15) years from the date
of issuance of a certificate of completion.

+ Ash Sireet 2 Issued to Ash Urban Renewal Development, LLC on April 3,
2017 for $630,000 with an interest rate of 2% per annum, The
payment of principal and accrued interest shall be due and payable
on or before September 3, 2019.
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NOTE 5.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

MORTGAGE LOANS RECEIVABLE, (continued)

The Agency's mortgage loans receivable balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are:

2017 2016

Ocean/Bayview $274.,000 $274.000
Grove Street 2 170,133 176,381
1 Edward Hart Road 250,000 250,000
Journal Square 700,000 700,000
Ash Street 1 850,000 350,000
Liberty Harbor 1,450,000 1,450,000
MLK Drive 435,600 435,600
Liberty Manor 478,125 478,125
Ash Sireet 2 630,600

$5,237.858 $4.614.106

EMPLQYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined public
employee retirement system (retirement system) covering substantially all state and local
government employees which includes those Agency employees who are eligible for pension
coverage.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of
Pensions and Benefits (the "Division"). For additional information about the PERS, please refer
to the Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/apnrpts.shtml,
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, PERS provides retirement, death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits,
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS: '

Tier Definition

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

Members who were eligible to ensoll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enrol! on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroil on or after June 28, 2011

o WY b e

Service retirement benefits of 1/55"™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to Tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age
62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.
Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers
3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of
service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that
a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in
accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age
50 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members
who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the
respective tier.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions
and Benefits. If an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS, the employee may be eligible to
enroll in the DCRP. DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution
retirement henefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon
enroliment for members of the DCRP.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary
information of the DCRP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New
Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are
based on percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees' annual compensation, as defined. The
DCRP was established July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and expanded
under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L.. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by
a 3% employer contribution.

Contribution Requirements

-~

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most retirement systems,
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds
provide for employee contributions based on 5.5% for PERS. This amount will increase to 6,.5%
plus an additional 1% phased in over 7 years beginning 2012, which increased to 10% in October
2011, of the employee’s annual compensation, as defined by law. Employers are required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds. The actuarially determined employer
contribution includes fimding for cost-of-living adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in
the PERS. In the PERS, the employer contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical
premiums,

The Agency’s contribution to the various plans, equal to the required contributions for each year,
were as follows:

Year PERS DC

2017 $107,475 $3,414
2016 80,955 3,229
2015 90,955 3,560
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)
Contribution Requirements, (continued)

Statement No's 68 and 71 require a state or local government employer to recognize a net pension
liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year.
However, since the financial statements are prepared on another comprehensive basis of
accounting, the net pension liability of the various pension systems is not recorded in the financial
statements and is only required to be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Pension Liabilities, Pension_Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related o Pensions

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS)

AtDecember 31,2017 and 2016, the Agency reported a liability of $2,653,692 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and
the total pension lability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The Agency's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the Agency's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating governments, actuarially determined. AtJune 30,2017,
the Agency's proportion was .0113998 percent, which was a decrease of .000698 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Agency recognized pension expense of
$215,244 and $393,690, respectively. At December 31, 2017, the Agency reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $62,485 b
Changes of assumptions 534,627 532,667
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 18,070
Changes in proportion and differences between the Agency’s
contributions and proportionate share of confributions 366.730 272,399
Total $981.912 $805.066
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTES. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense. and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

The $981,912 reported as deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions resulting from Agency
contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2017, the plan measurement date is June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (excluding changes in
proportion) will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2018 $62,470
2019 94,269
2020 57,122
2021 (75,973)
2022 (55,374)

Changes in Proporiion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized
(amortized) by each employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan
members, which is 5.48, 5.57, 5.72 and 6.44 years for 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounts,
respectively.

Additional Information

Local Group Collective balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Dec. 31,2017 Dec. 31, 2016
Collective deferred outflows of resources $6,424,455,842 $8.685,338,380
Collective deferred inflows of resources 5,700,625,981 870,133,595
Collective net pension liability 23,278,401,588 29,617,131,759
Agency's Proportion 0113998030% .0120977857%
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continned)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Actuarial Assumpiions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used
the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement. ‘

Inflation 2.25 Percent
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilitics may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table
for male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years
for males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7
years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the
base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plans actuary’s modified MP-2014
projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy
Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback 1 year for males and females) for service retirements
and beneficiaries of former members and a one year static projection based on mortality
improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former
members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection scale, Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%
at June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expecied returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation} are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expecied Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 551%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pengions, (continued)

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30,2617. This
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond
Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on
the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year, The State employer contributed 40% of the
actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their actuarially
determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2040, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investmens was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of
June 30, 2016, respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what
the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is I -
percentage point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30. 2017
1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Agency's proportionate share of
the pension liability $3,292,085 $2.653,692 $2,121,831
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NOTE 6.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
{A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, (continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), (continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
The financial report may be accessed at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the Agency's capital assets activity for the years ended

December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Property Held for Redevelopment
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings
Vehicles and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings
Vehicles and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Capital Assets, Net

Balance Balance
Jan, 1, 2017 Increases Decreases Dec. 31, 20617
$26,354,039 $21,857,869 $2,067,766 $46,144,142
3.003,676 140,194 3.143.870 0
29357715 21,998,063 5,211,636 46.144.142
9,676,058 13,371,342 23,047,400
§0.718 80,718
9,756,776 13371342 23,128,118
(3,295,167 (233,400) (3,528,567)
(184271 (10,83 (29.259)
(3,313.594) {244.232) (3.557.826)
6,443.182 13,127,110 19,570,292
$35,800,897 $35,125.173 $5.211,636 $65.714.434
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS, (continued)

Balance Balance
Jan. 1, 2016 Increases Decreases Dec. 31, 2016

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Property Held for Redevelopment $25,692,087 $1,878,715 (81,216,763) §26,354 039

Construction in Progress 3.003.676 3.003.676
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 25,692,087 4,882,391 1.216.763 29357713
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings 9,676,058 9,676,058

Vehicles and Equipment 15718 65,000 80,718
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 9,691,776 65,000 9.756.7176
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings {3,098,446) (196,721) (3,295,167

Vehicles and Equipment {15.718) (2,709 {18.427)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,114 1643 (199.430) (3.313.594)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 6,577.612 (134.430) 6,443 182
Capital Assets, Net 332,269,699 $4.747.961 ($1.216.763) $35,800,897

On March 27, 1998 the Agency and the City of Jersey City entered into a cooperation agreement
for the construction of a community/educational center on property owned by the Agency in Ward
E. Under the agreement, the City agreed to issue bonds in the amount of $9,500,000 and provide
a grant of that amount solely to finance the construction of the project. The City has permanently
financed the project through the issuance of general serial bonds, which have since been refinanced
on multiple occasions. The facility was completed during 1999 and the Agency entered into certain
leases for the entire facility, Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the Agency will, to the extent
reasonably possible, fully reimburse the City the annual amount needed by the City to pay principal
and interest due on the bonds issued by the City to construct the facility from any revenue the
Agency receives under its lease of the facility. The Agency has complied with all financial
provisions of the cooperation agreement from inception through December 31, 2017. Although the
City has refinanced the original bonds, the Agency continues to reimburse the City based on the
amortization schedule of the original bonds from any available revenue the Agency receives from
leasing or renting the facility.
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NOTE 8.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Under the existing policies of the Agency, employees are allowed to accumulate (with certain
restrictions) unused sick leave, compensatory time and vacation benefits over the life of their
working careers and to redeem such unused leave time in cash (with certain limitations) upon

retitement, termination in good standing or by extended absence immediately preceding retirement.
Additionally, employees who meet certain minimum accruals are allowed to receive payments for
compensatory and annual leave time in March and October for compensatory time and May for
annual leave. Tt is estimated that the current cost of such unpaid compensation would approximate
$281,206 at December 31, 2017. These amounts are accrued as a noncurrent liability at
December 31, 2017.

In 2012 the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency entered into a loan agreement with the Hudson
County Economic Development Corporation in the amount of $273,000, which was amended to
$317,204 during 2013, for the abatement and removal of environmental hazards on certain
properties located in Jersey City, New Jersey. This amount represents pass through funds from the
United States Environmental Protection Agency's Brownfields Revolving Loan Program which are
to be drawn down based on qualified expenditures. As of December 31, 2017 the entire loan amount
of$317,204 has been drawn down by the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency. Throughout the term
of the loan, a fixed rate of interest of 0,5% per annum will be charged. Interest is due and payable
from inception to June 20, 2019 on June 20, 2019, Principal and interest payments in five equal
installments commence on June 20, 2019 and will be paid on the first day of each year. All amounts
of principal and interest owed will be paid no later than June 20, 2029. The Agency has recorded
a loan payable of $317,204 as of December 31, 2017.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - PROPERTY HOLD FOR REDEVELOPMENT

The Agency sold a Property Held for Redevelopment during 2016 for $4,160,000, including
$160,000 for 8 units in excess of the original approval of 300 units. The base purchase price of
$4,000,000 will be paid to the Agency as follows:

(2) $500,000 upon the Closing of Title, (b) $1,000,000 upon the commencement of construction of
Phase I, (c¢) $750,000 upon the commencement of construction of Phase II (provided however, if
the Project is not phased, $750,000 shall be paid upon commencement of construction of the
Project, in addition to the $1,000,000 set forth in (a) above) and (d) $1,750,000 on the earlier to
oceur of (T) nine (9) months after the issuance of a permanent certificate of occupancy for the
Project (or Phase I, if the Project is phased) and {ii) the permanent financing of the Project (or Phase
I of the Project, if the Project is phased).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - PROPERTY HOLD FOR REDEVELOPMENT, (continued)

As of December 31, 2017, the Agency has closed title on the property and received $660,000
representing the 8 units in excess of the original approval and the $500,000 initial payment on the
base purchase price. The balance owed as of December 31, 2017 is $1,750,000.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIXS

State and Federal Grants: The Agency receives grants from the State of New Jersey, the U.S.
Government and the City of Jersey City that are generally conditional upon compliance with terms
and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the
funds for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are
subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors, In addition, these audits could result in
the disallowance of costs previously reimbursed and require repayment fo the grantor agency. The
Agency estimates that no material liabilities will result from these audits.

Redeveloper Agreements: The Agency has entered into certain redeveloper agreements whereby the
redeveloper is responsible for the payment of any awards of just compensation and any relocation
claim awards resulting from the condemnation of real property. The Agency is however primarily
liable for these payments if the redeveloper defanlts on any payments. At the present time the
financial terms of all redeveloper agreements have been met.

Environmental Remedigtion Liability: Certain of the Agency's redevelopment properties are in the
process of being cleared of identified environmental contamination. Costs associated with the
clean-up of these sites will be reimbursed by the prior property owners, project redevelopers and
State or City agencies. Management believes the Agency's liability, if any, will not be material.

Litigation: The Agency is a defendant in several lawsuits which arose out of the normal course of
business and which the Agency's management believes will not have a material impact on the
financial statements. These liabilities, if any, not covered by insurance, should not be material in
amount.

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency v Kerrigan

The Agency has eniered info a settlement agreement relating to a judgment pertaining to a
condemnation award. In conjunction with the terms of the agreement the Agency obtained a
mortgage on the related property from Liberty Harbor Holding, L.1.C. which constitutes a first lien

on the property.
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NOTE 160.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, (continued)

The redeveloper of the property shall make payments in accordance with an agreed upon schedule
to the Agency's legal counsel. All payments received will be paid to the legal counsel in trust for
the original property owners in satisfaction of the judgement payable. Upon final payment by the
redeveloper the JCRA will discharge the mortgage on the property.

As of December 31, 2017, the redeveloper has made all payments required by the setflement
agreement. The balance of the mortgage receivable and related judgment payable at December 31,
201715 $1,450,000. The Agency still has significant exposure to liability with respect to the JCRA
v. Kerrigan case in that the redevelopers resources and security for payment of the final award may
be insufficient. '

One Journal Square Partners Urban Renewal Company, LLC et als. V. Jersey Cily Redevelopment
Agency et als., Case No. 2:18-cv-11148 (the “One Journal Litigation™). The One Journal Litigation,
which was filed in the United States District Coutt for the District of New Jersey on June 27, 2018,
alleges four contract claims and five claims on connection with 42 U.S.C. § 1983 against the
Agency, the City of Jersey City, and the Mayor of Jersey City, all in connection with a proposed
redevelopment project located within Journal Square. The plaintiffs are seeking compensatory
damages that they estimate in excess of $300 million, punitive damages, and equitable relief. The
first responsive pleadings are due from the Agency and the other defendants on September 5,2018.
The Agency believes that the allegations against it set forth in the complaint are unfounded and
intends to vigorously defend this matter.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, automobile coverage,
damage and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The Agency has obtained insurance coverage to guard against these events which will provide
minimum exposute to the Agency should they occur.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there
been any settlements in excess of insurance coverage in any of the prior three years,
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED) '

NOTE 11. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Agency has received approval to issue debt on behalf of third-parties entities. The Agency has
no obligation for the debt beyond the resources provided by the related trust indenture and funding
agreements and, accordingly, the debt is not reflected as a liability in the accompanying financial
statements.

The Agency's conduit debt activity for the six months ended December 31, 2017 1s as follow:
» Series 2015 Redevelopment Area Bonds — Forest City PEP-1

The Agency was granted approval during 2013 to issue $20,000,000 of redevelopment area bonds
for Forest City redevelopment projects.

On November 6, 2015, the Agency issued $10,000,000 of federally taxable Redevelopment Area
Bonds. The bonds have a final maturity date of September 15, 2040 and bear interest at a rate of
7% per annum, The entire principal amount of this bond shall be drawn down by December 31,
2016, Principal payments are due and payable on September 15 of each year, commencing in 2018,

Interest payments are due and payable on March 15 and September 15 of each year, commencing
in 2018. The obligation to make the payments of the principal of and interest on the bonds shall
be secured by the pledge by the City of Jersey City of the pledged annual service charge, as stated
in the financial agreement, dated September 9, 2015, governing payments made to the City in lieu
of real estate taxes. These bonds were issued fo (I) fund certain costs of Phase 1A of the
redevelopment plan for the Harismus Cove Redevelopment Area; and (ii) pay certain costs
incidental to the issuance and sale of the bonds, together with other costs permitted by the Local
Redevelopment and Housing Law. As of December 31, 2017, the remaining authorization of
£10,000,000 has not been issued.

* Series 2016 Redevelopment Area Bonds — Journal Square Project

The Agency was granted approval during 2013 to issue $10,000,000 of redevelopment area bonds
for Journal Square redevelopment projects.
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NOTE 11.

NOTE 12,

NOTE 13.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continned)

On January 28, 2016, the Agency issued $10,000,000 of federally taxable redevelopment area

bonds. The bonds have a final maturity date of September 1, 2042 and bear interest at a rate of 7%

per annum. Principal and interest shall be payable on each March 1, June 1, September 1, and

December 1, commencing March 1,2016. The Bonds are special limited obligations of the Agency

payable solely from amounts pledged therefore under a Trust Indenture Agreement, dated

January 28, 2016, including payments of pledged annual service charges pursuant to financial -
agreements between the City and redeveloper. These bonds were issued to finance a portion of

certain public and private improvements in the Journal Square Redevelopment Area.

RESTATEMENT AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The Agency has restated its December 31, 2016 statement of net position to include amounts
designated as developers escrow receivable, $620,982, which were not explicitly displayed in the
prior year’s audit. This amount, in addition to other immaterial adjustments, make up the prior
period adjustment to net assets, $613,558, noted on the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets.

Additionally, the Agency has reclassified its December 31, 2016 statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position to enhance the comparability of the results of operations to the approved
budget.

APPLICATION OF GASB STATEMENT NO. 72

The Agency has begun to apply the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements
and Application, as of December 31, 2017, This Statement addresses accounting and financial
reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. This Statement provides guidance for determining a
fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for
applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements, The
Agency has decided to apply this pronouncement in a way which is both accurate and practical,
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

APPLICATION OF GASB STATEMENT NO. 72, (continued)

With over one-hundred individual properties held for redevelopment, it would be impractical for the
Agency to obtain valuations for each property held at each measurement date. As such, the Agency
has updated the value of its individual properties with their most current assessed value as of
December 31, 2017. The Agency believes that this is the most practical application of the fair value
measurement for ifs assets.

As the application of fair value has not been updated historically, the Agency has recognized an
wnrealized gain on revaluation of fixed assets of $32,085,341 for the year ended December 31,2017,

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through August 15, 2018, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and no items were noted for disclosure.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
REQUIRED SUPPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE AGENCY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIRMENET SYSTEM

Schedule 1

Apency's Proportion of the Net Position
Liability (Asset)

Agency's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liabilify {Asset)

Ageney's Covered -Employee Payroll

Agency's Praporiionate Share of the Net
Pension Liebility (Assef) as a Percentage
of its Covered-Employee Payroll

Last Five Fiseal Years®
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
0,01 $40% 0.01210% 0.00941% 0.01103% D.01068%
2,653,692 £ 3,583,017 § 2,113,773 5 2,065,692 § 2,041,703
976,916 B 720,778 3 649,719 H 763,045 5 737,115
271.64% 497.10% 325.34% 270.72% 276.99%

* The amounts presented for each year were determined as of June 30 of the respective year.

The schedule is pressnted to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Agency will only

present information for those years for which information is aveilable.

Change of Benefit Terms

Norne

Changes of Assumplions

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the Iofal pension liability is dependent upon the long-
term cxpeoted rate of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was A change in the municipal
bond index rate from the prior meesuremen date fo the current measurement date resulting in a change
in the discount rate from 3,98% o 5.00%. This change in the discount rate is considered to be & change

in scivarial assumptions under GASE No.68.
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Statutorily Reguired Employer Contributiens

Contributions in Relation to the
Statutorily Reguired Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Agency's Covered - Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

* The amounts presented for each year were determined as of June 30 of the respective year.

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REQUIRED SUPPIEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE AGENCY'S CONTRIBUTIONS
PURLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIRMENET SYSTEM

Lasi Five Fiscil Years®

Schedule 2

2007 2016 2013 2014 2613
3 105,607 3 107,475 5 80,955 90,955 10,493
105 607 107,475 80,955 90,955 80,493
$ -3 -3 - . -
3 976,916 § 720,778 3 649,719 763,045 737,115
10.81% 14.91% 12.46% 11.92% 10.92%

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requiternent {o show information for 10 years in accordance
with GASB Statement No, 68, However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Apency will only
present informatian for those years for which information is available,
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Schetlule 3

JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS
BUDGET TQ ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 38, 2017

2017 2017
Adopted Budget as 2017 Varignce 2016
REVENUES Budget Amended Actual Excess (Deficit) Actual
Operating Revenues
Other - Rents and Facility Charges 3 275,000 $ 275000 § 436532 3 161,532 3 76,658
Other - Redeveloper Fees/Reimbursements 675,000 675,000 2,992,343 2,317,343 1,967,515
Federal Grants
Community Development Block Grant 1,500,000 1,800,600 1,418,391 (389,609) 2,940,779
Other 3,385,656 3,185,656 118,801 {3,265,855%) 1,266,891
State Grants 2,446,540 2,446,540 1,261,856 (1,184,684) 2285383
Private Grants 375,000 375,000 (375,000)
City of Jersey City - Capital Funds 99,399 99,399 1,894,064
Hudson County Open Space 725,000 725,000 {725,000)
Property Sales 1,500,000 1,500,000 (1,500,000)
Miiscellanecus 76,200 76,200 598,207 522,007 311,689
Nen-Opexating Revenyes
Other - JPMorgan Chase Grant 60,000 60,000 (60,000}
Other - Interesi an Investments and Deposits 50,000 56,000 161,486 111,486 04,252
Total Revenues ’ 11,368,396 11,368,306 7,079,015 (4,285,381) 10,837,239
AFPROYPRIATIONS
Operating Appropriations
Administration:
Salaries, Wages and Fringe Benefits 1,649,600 1,649,600 1,467,218 [182,382) 1,359,144
Other Expenses : 711,600 711,600 435,664 (275,936} 517,620
Cost of Providing Services:

Other Expenses 9,007,196 9,007,196 1,445,013 (5,562,181) 8,263,036
Total Appropriations 11,368,396 11,368,356 5,347,897 (6,020,459 10,139,800
Budgetary Income {Loss) 3 - 3 - 1,731,118 § 1,731,118 697,419
Reconeiliation to GAAP Basis:

Gain on Disposition of Praperty Held for Redevelopment 691,795 3,443,180

Centribution of Property Held for Redevelopment 1,878,715

Disposition of Property Held for Redevelopment (449,943)

Unreafized Gain on Revaioation of Fixed Assets 32,085,341

Depreciation Expense (244,233) {199,430)

Pension Expense - GASR 68 {232,028) (312,735)
Change in Net Position GAAP Basis 3 34,031,993 $ 5,057,226
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Operating Revenue:
Federal Grants
State Granfs
Redeveloper Fees
Redeveloper Reimbursements
City Contributions
(Gain on Preperty Held for Redevelopment
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses:
Federal Grants
State Grants
Private Grants
Redeveioper Reimbursed Expenses
City Contributions
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Cperating Income

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses):
Interest Revenue

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Net Income {Lonss) Before Transfers
Transfers:

Sale of Property Held for Redevelopment

Capital Expenditures

Inerease in Developers Escrow Recefvable
Total Transfers

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position

Net Position - January 1, 2017, Restated

Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

(Change in Accounting Policy - Nete 14)
Prior Periad Adjustment
(Change in Accounting Palicy - Note 13)

Net Positian - December 31, 2017

JERSEY CITY REBEYELOPMENT AGENCY
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017

Scheduled

Restricted for Net Investment General
Developers Escrow in Capital Operating
and Project Depaosits Assels Accounts Total

1,998,850 1,998,850
1,822,046 1,822,046
1,707,807 1,707,807
1,284,536 1,284,536
99,395 99,359
631,795 691,795
4,891 4,891
1,284,536 6,324,788 7,609,324
329,290 329,290
241,867 241,867
8,874 8,874
1,713,679 1,713,679
09,399 99,399
3,186,816 3,186,816
244,233 244 233
1,713,679 4,110,479 5,824,158
(429,143) 2,214,305 1,785,166
161,486 161,486
a 161 486 161,486
(429,143) 2,375,795 1,946,652

(3,125,971) 3,125,971

954,167 (654,167}
429,143 (429,143)

4209 143 (2,171,804) 1,742,661
(2,171,804 4,118,456 1,946,652
35,800,897 3,396,768 41,197,665
32,085,341 32,085,341
613,588 613,588
65,714,434 10,128,812 75,843,246
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND

CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents
January 1, 2017

Cash Receipts
Operating Cash Receipts
Receipts of Project Deposits
Receipts from the Sale of Property Held for Redevelopment
Interest Received

Total Cash Receipts
Cash and Cash Equivalents Available
Cash Dishursements:
Operating Cash Payments
Payments from Project Deposits
Payments for Construction in Progress and Building Improvements

Total Cash Disbursements

Cash and Cash Equivalents -
December 31,2017
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Schedule 5

Restricted for General
Developers Escrow Operating
and Project Deposits Accounts Total
6,320,009 16,044,038 22,364,047
7,590,906 7,590,906
256,930 440,613 707,548
3,817,766 3,817,766
161,486 161,486
266,930 12,010,776 12,277,706
6,586,939 28,054,814 34,641,753
7,692,865 7,692,865
1,092,425 1,092,425
140,194 140,194
1,092,425 7,833,059 8,925,484
5,494,514 20,221,755 25,716,269




Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Ceriified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanague Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J, Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-679-7128

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL, OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairman and Members of
the Board of Commissioners

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency

Jersey City, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United
States, the financial statements of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency (A Component Unit of the
City of Jersey City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15, 2018.

Internal Confrel Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the Jersey City
Redevelopment Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on atimely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Honorable Chairman and Members of
the Board of Commissioners

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency

Page 2.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

We did identify certain immaterial deficiencies in internal control that we have reported to
management of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency in the accompanying commernts and

recommendations section of this report.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency’s
financial statements are frec of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the
management of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency in the accompanying comments and

recommendations section of this report.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s infernal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CMQ;)JD,&J&V G, 0.

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

August 15,2018
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards present the activity of all
federal and state award programs of the Jersey City Redevelopment Agency. The Agency is defined
in Note 1 to the Agency's basic financial statements. All state awards received directly from state
agencies, as well as state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included
on the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance are presented on
the accrual basis of accounting, These bases of accounting are described in Notes 2(A) to the
Agency’s basic financial statements, The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations and Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Awards and financial assistance are reported in the Agency’s basic financial statements ona GAAP
basis as follows:

Federal State Total
U.8., Department of Housing and
Urban Development $210,489 b $210,489
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 118,801 118,801
N.J. Department of Environmental
Protection 241.867 241.867
Total Financial Awards $329.290 $241.867 $571,157

NOTE 4, RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAT AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related
federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5. INDIRECT COST RATE

The Jersey City Redevelopment Agency has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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General Comments




JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Apreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 40A:11-3

N.J.8.A.40A:11-2 contains definitions for terms used throughout N.J.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq. and was
amended under P.L. 1999, ¢.440. It includes as subsection (23) the term ‘competitive coniracting’,
which is defined as “the method described in sections 1 through 5 of P.L. 1999, ¢.440 (C.40:11-4.1
through C.40A:11-4.5) of contracting for specialized goods and services in which formal proposals
are solicited from vendors, formal proposals are evaluated by the purchasing agent or counsel; and
the governing body awards a contract to a vendor or vendors from among the formal proposals
received.”

N.I.S.A. 40A:11-3 was amended with P.L, 1999, ¢.440 to raise the bid threshold and require award
by governing body resolution. “When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing
agent in the aggregate does not exceed in a contract year the sum of $40,000, the contract may be
awarded by a purchasing agent when so authorized by ordinance or resolution as appropriate to the
contracting unit, ofthe governing body of the contracting unit without public advertising for bids and
bidding therefore, except that the governing body may adopt an ordinance or resolution to set a lower
threshold for the receipt of public bids or the solicitation of competitive quotations.”

N.J.5.A. 40A:11-15 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to extend the base contract period. “Any
contract made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months, except
that contracts for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of N.J.S.A.
40A:11-5 may be awarded for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months.

The bid thresholds in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:11-3 (as amended) is $40,000.

The governing body of the Agency has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures
in any category will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year. Where question arises
as to whether any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the opinion of the
Agency’s attorney should be sought before a commitment is made.,

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories
for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results
of such an accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed,
however, to determine whether any clear-cut violations existed. No violations were discovered,

The results of our examination indicated that no individual payments, contracts, or agreements were
made “for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies,” in
excess of the statutory thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with
the provision of N.J.S.A, 40A:11-4,

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contract or agreements for “Professional
Services” per N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

COMMENTS

Finance:

1.

L

o @

*The Agency has not formally approved the petty cash accounts and funds are not being
maintained on an imprest basis.

*The Agency maintained a payroll account which was inactive for the entirety of the
period under review.

Certain required financial disclosure forms here not submitted per by N.J.S.A. 40A:9-22.
Certain purchases and professional contracts were made/awarded without satisfying all
necessary requirements of the State of New Jersey Local Public Contracts Law.

Bank reconciliations are not being reviewed on a timely basis.

Stale dated checks were not reviewed and cancelled on a timely basis.

Escrow balances are not being maintained in accordance with the applicable requirements
of N.I.S.A. 40:55D, “Municipal Land Use Law.”

RECOMMENDATIONS

Finance:

1.

N

*The Agency formally approve the petty cash accounts and maintain them on an imprest
basis.

*The inactive payroll bank account be closed.

All required persons should submit a financial disclosure form in accordance with
N.JLS.A. 40A:9-22.

That all procurements follow the required procedures outlined in the State of New Jersey
Local Public Contract Law.

That all bank reconciliations be reviewed on a timely basis.

Stale dated checks should be reviewed and cancelled if outstanding for greater than 180
days.

Escrow balances should be maintained in accordance with all applicable laws and
statutes.
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JERSEY CITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Jersey City)

Problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our
ability to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments and recommendations, or should you desire
assistance in implementing our recommendations, do not hesitate to call us.

We wish to thank Jersey City Redevelopment Agency for their cooperation during the performance
of our audit. _

Respectfully submitted,

Cadi, Ja GMee Guc R

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
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